ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
July 19, 2011
9:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Welechowski, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senat or Kevi n Meyer

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Cathy G essel
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Linda Menard

Representati ve M ke Hawker

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha

Representati ve Paul Seaton - via tel econference

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

Presentations on ways to increase efficiency and effectiveness
of Al aska's state governnent

- HEARD
W TNESS REG STER

CURTI S THAYER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented ways the departnment could find
ef ficienci es.

DANI EL S. SULLI VAN, Commi ssi oner

Departnent of Natural Resources

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented ways the departnent could find
ef ficiencies.

MARK LUl KEN, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
Anchor age, AK

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- July 19, 2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented ways the departnent could find
efficiencies.

BRUCE TANGEMAN, Deputy Comnm ssi oner

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented ways the departnent could find
ef ficienci es.

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comnm ssi oner

Di vision of Treasury

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented ways the departnent could find
ef ficiencies.

JOHN SPALDI NG, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that |egislators should forget
about buying property in downtown Anchorage and instead nobve
their offices to the airport.

BREEHI A M TCHELL, representing herself

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a personal exanple illustrating
inefficiency in state government.

LYNN WLLIS, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Suggested the Legislature vet the budget
during the Interim

BARBARA W NLKEY, representing herself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TION STATEMENT: Provided exanples of waste, including
speci al |egislative sessions.

JERRY LAVI NE, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the Legislature was one of
the inefficiencies of state governnent.

PAUL D. KENDALL, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that nore neetings of this type
were needed to provide tine to go into detail and settle
probl ens or gripe about governnment in a constructive nmanner.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- July 19, 2011



BARBARA LESSMEI ER, representing herself

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Described inefficiencies in the state run
job centers in Anchorage.

LEWS DAVI S, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that he's seen lots of waste in
state governnent and believes that nany state enployees are
over pai d.

JOHN FARLEI GH, representing hinself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the state could be nore
efficient if it developed its own healthcare system

THERESA OBERMEYER, representing herself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Encouraged all legislators to travel to
Norway to | ook at that pernmanent fund.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:07:10 AM

CHAIR BI LL WELECHOWNSKI called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:07 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Menard, Meyer and Chair W el echowski .

Presentati ons on ways to increase efficiency and effectiveness
of Al aska's state governnent

CHAIR W ELECHOASKI said the committee would hear presentations
from the conm ssioners of the departnents of commerce, natura
resources, transportation, and revenue on efficiencies and
effectiveness in state governnent. He noted that a core
responsibility of legislators is to ensure that public dollars
are spent wisely. Fromtine-to-tinme it's necessary to step back
to assess whether or not there are nore efficient and effective
ways of acconplishing this task.

CHAIR WELECHONSKI related that earlier this year the Institute
of Social and Economic Research for the University of Al aska
Anchorage (UAA) reported that Al aska's current |evel of spending
was not sustainable. The report noted that oil production, which
is the base of state governnent, is in decline. It is therefore
time, while the revenue stream is strong, to look at state

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- July 19, 2011



government prograns and services and consider new ways to
har ness technology to serve Al askans nore effectively and extend
the reach of the state budget. He encouraged Al askans to submt
their ideas on acconplishing this task on the website
st at eof Al aska. aksenat e. org.

CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI expl ai ned that each of the conm ssioners were
asked to describe three to five ways that the efficiency and
effectiveness of their departnment could be inproved and to
identify any statutory changes needed to inplenent the suggested
i mprovenents.

CURTI S THAYER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Department of Comrerce,
Communi ty and Econom c¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), stated that he would
speak on behalf of the departnment today because Conmm ssioner
Bel | was del ayed after touring the Healy C ean Coal Pl ant.

9:10: 18 AM

MR. THAYER stated t hat DCCED has t he constitutiona
responsibility to review community activities, collect and
publish 1ocal gover nient i nformation, and  assi st | ocal
governnent in managerial functions. This is acconplished by
pronoting healthy econonmies and strong conmunities. DCCED is
committed to knocking down barriers to increase comrunication
and efficiency.

DCCED regul ates banking and securities, corporations through
pr of essi onal and business licensing, the insurance industry, and
public wutilities through the Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska

(RCA). DCCED assists |ocal governments and unincorporated
comunities with grants, technical assistance, financial and
utility managenent, and planning and energy nanagenent,

primarily through the Dyvision of Community and Regiona
Affairs. DCCED has prograns ained at key econom c sectors such
as electrical power generation through the Al aska Energy
Authority (AEA), tourism mning, fishing, and aerospace.

MR. THAYER said DCCED used $12 nmillion that was in the capital
budget to conduct a marketing programfor the state in lieu of a
gqualified trade association. DCCED is working with ATIA to | ook
for a good governance structure and the ideal marketing
structure. To date they have assuned five contracts.

DCCED is working with other departnents to |leverage the state's

current investnments in agriculture, mning, seafood, tourism
forest products, film and other industries. This cohesive

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- July 19, 2011



approach provides a broad perspective to partner for nedia
outreach and to respond to trade and consumer inquiries.

9:14: 01 AM

MR. THAYER said DCRA staff and the Division of Admnistrative
Services were proactive in developing efficiencies, which nade
it possible to imediately send revenue-sharing checks to

communities once the bill became effective on July 1. That high
bar s expected to continue. Streamlining the form and
turnaround time for grants under $50,000 is an efficiency that
will leave nore tine to review requirements on mllion dollar

grants. This helps the grant recipient and provides good
stewardship of the state's noney, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA observed that since the D vision of
Community and Regional Affairs was brought under DCCED about
eight years ago, she's seen a disconnect in how conmunities
function and survive in terns of comerce. She asked if DCCED
had conversations about bridging that paradigm to ensure that
rural Al aska is devel oped at hone where both the resources and
peopl e are | ocat ed.

VR. THAYER replied the conversations are ongoing and
perspectives differ. Since the Legislature conbined the two
departnents to form the current DCCED, sonme people have said
there is too nmuch focus on conmerce and others believe there is
too much focus on rural Al aska. The DCCED perspective is that
there can never be too much enphasis on either. He explained
that the director of DCRA is a 27-year enployee who is very
involved in rural Al aska. He brought the idea of expedited
revenue sharing forward and now it's a departnent priority.
DCCED provides regional assistance through the legislatively
est abl i shed Al aska Regi onal Econom c Assistance Program known as
the ARDOR program to provide econom c¢ hubs statew de. DCRA now
travels to rural Alaska nore frequently to identify problens.
For exanple, the community of Newtok worked with DCRA, DOTPF and
the mlitary to relocate out of a flood plain to a nearby area.
This was a comunity-driven program and those opportunities
exi st across rural Al aska. The departnent is also working on the
Connect Al aska project to conduct a broadband inventory of rural
ar eas.

9:20: 15 AM

DCCED is working with the Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOTPF) and the Departnment of Mlitary &
Veterans Affairs (DWA) to encourage filmng at Kulis Air Force

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- July 19, 2011



Base. A bill mking its way through the House provides an
incentive to filmin rural Al aska.

Forty five states have a research and devel opment tax credit to
attract business and encourage it to stay. Al aska does not offer
an R&D tax credit, but perhaps it should for the business
comunity.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI recogni zed that Representative Hawker was in
t he audi ence.

9:22:03 AM

MR. THAYER sai d DCCED has al so worked on revolving |oan funds to
help coastal comunities in rural Al aska develop a shellfish
industry. This type of program has been very successful in
Canada. Another revolving loan fund is working to bring 300
comercial charter fishing operators back to work after being
forced out of the charter industry due to federal regulations.
The department wants Al askans to own and operate charter boats.
A third bill making its way through the process provides small
loans, up to $35,000, for snall businesses struggling to
operate. The banking association supports these bills because
they don't conpete with the private sector.

SENATOR PASKVAN j oi ned conmittee.

MR. THAYER said DCCED did an inventory and found it had 25
outstanding pending regulations. Al division directors were
asked to review those and several have since been closed. The
ones that need to nove forward are being inplenented into
regul ation.

SENATOR MENARD asked for exanples of pending regulations that
wer e cl osed.

MR. THAYER replied many of the older ones were wth the
Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Alaska (RCA) dealing with electrical
utilities and purchasing power agreenents. He noted that sone
regul ations for corporations haven't been updated for 30 years.

The department is currently working wth corporations to
identify the process for conplaints. That is out for a 30-day
comment period. After that is conplete they' Il look further at

the regulation package wthin the D vision of Banking and
Securities.

9:25:46 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- July 19, 2011



CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI asked if legislation was needed to help the
department becone nore efficient.

MR. THAYER replied he didn't have anything to suggest wth
regard to regulations but there is an issue with the travel
budget for the 20 boards under the Division of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing. The various boards have
projected a $550,000 travel budget but the division only has
$275,000 to allocate to board travel.

9:28: 50 AM
CHAIR WELECHOWNSKI asked if there's a reason that only nine
prograns within this division offer online licensing renewal.

MR. THAYER replied the division is trying to inplenment online
license renewal s for all boards.

SENATOR MENARD asked if DCCED is |ooking at consolidation to
[imt the nunber of boards.

MR. THAYER replied it's a worthwhile conversation to entertain
with the Legislature.

9:31: 33 AM
CHAIR WELECHOWSKI asked if it's possible to use video
conferenci ng or Skype for at |east some of the neetings.

MR. THAYER replied video conferencing is done when possible, but
some boards are required to neet in person. He added that he
would |ook into whether those requirenments are statutory or
regul atory.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA questioned why there should be such a
requi renent when technology has taken such |eaps and the state
has worked so hard to ensure that new technology is used in
state governnment and the Legislature.

VR. THAYER acknow edged that current technol ogy wasn't
contenpl ated when sone of the regulations were inplenented, but
tel econferencing i s encouraged whenever possible.

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is potential for the Al aska
O fice of Tourism and Devel opnent to redirect funds so that the
500,000 travel brochures it sends out annually target people
that are nore likely to visit the state. In sone instances the
return is as | ow as one percent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- July 19, 2011



9:34: 05 AM

MR. THAYER replied it's worth |ooking at but those neasures were
made under different comm ssioners and adm nistrations and it's
probably tinme to develop different and stronger netrics.

SENATOR MENARD asked if he'd had an opportunity to |ook at the
Save Al aska website that Senator W el echowski mentioned earlier.

MR. THAYER answer ed no.

9: 35:43 AM

CHAIR W ELECHOWMSKI  thanked Deputy Comm ssioner Thayer and
announced that Comm ssioner Sullivan would deliver the next
presentati on.

9:35: 53 AM

DANIEL S SULLI VAN, Comm ssi oner, Depart nent of Nat ur al
Resources (DNR), thanked the conmittee for the opportunity to
di scuss efficiencies. He remnded the nenbers that DNR s
m ssion, which is enbedded in the state constitution, focuses on
maxi m zi ng resource developnment in the public interest. Wile
the primary source of revenue conmes from petrol eum devel opnment,
the departnment continues to l|ook at the overall and vast
resource developnment potential and it frequently |ooks at
efficiencies and effectiveness.

COWMWM SSI ONER  SULLIVAN said he would discuss three areas:
permtting, oil and gas |leasing, and the GAP analysis regarding
oversight of oil and gas activity in the state. He noted that
DNR and the Legislature have a good working relationship and
that the conmttee has probably already heard sone of the
information he will present.

9:38:46 AM
COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said he and the Governor agree that the
state permtting system could be inproved in a nunber of ways

He noted his office has a "nonster" poster board that
illustrates the necessary steps with regard to |local, state, and
federal agencies in order to drill an oil and gas well. The

department is |ooking at that cumbersonme process and the backl og
of permts that nunbered 2,500 |ast winter. This is unacceptable
and it's choking private sector developnment and jobs, both of
which are critically inportant to the state.

Permtting efficiencies are focused in four areas: 1) ridding

the backlog in three years; 2) new hires in mning, |and and
water; 3) evaluating the current systemto inprove efficiencies,

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- July 19, 2011



timeliness and certainty, then presenting a regulatory and
statutory package of changes to the Governor and Legislature;
and 4) inproving permtting coordination wth the federal
gover nnent .

9:41:16 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if it is DNRs policy to require permt
applicants to pay for departnment staff travel and expenses in
order for permts to be processed.

COW SSI ONER SULLIVAN replied the answer is conplicated. The
office of large project nmanagenent and permtting (OPMP) 1is
designed as a one-stop shop for permtting of major projects
statewide. It has a single point of contact with representatives
from different agencies and is considered to be an efficient
nodel that could possibly be wused for federal permtting,
particularly for mning on federal lands. Currently the average
time to permt a mne on federal land is 8-10 years conpared to
2-3 years in Australia. Large conpanies can choose the OPM
nodel and those that nmake that choice pay a fee that relates to
funding the OPMP activity. Conpanies that don't use the OPW
nodel don't have to pay a fee.

9:43: 29 AM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked what DNR s standard policy is regarding
applicants paying for staff travel.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied he would get back to himwth nore
specifics with regard to questions about travel.

SENATOR PASKVAN said his concern is whether DNR has a sufficient
budget to handle the permtting process wthout having to ask
applicants to pay for travel expenses up front. He questioned
whether there is a policy applicants can |look to in order to
know what the entire process will cost.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied he would get back to himwth nore
det ai | s.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said she'd like to see the state diversify
fromits oil and gas focus. Recalling that 40 years ago there
was interest in developing park fringes for recreation, she
asked if DNR had |ooked at featuring tourism and having
concessionaires at the parks to attract nore people.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied he told Ben Ellis, the new parks
director, that DNR s goal is to nake state parks the pride of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- July 19, 2011



all Alaskans. The idea is to think outside the box and focus on
public/private partnerships. There are no specific regulations
in this regard.

9:48: 33 AM

SENATOR MEYER asked him to comment on the success of the recent
Cook Inlet lease and to discuss ideas for expediting the |ong
permtting process.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN relied the Cook Inlet |ease was successful
because the tax structure is very conpetitive. He noted that the

second area of his presentation relates to increasing
participation in oil and gas leasing and accelerating
devel opnent. Cook Inlet provides sone exanples. The Governor's
goal for one mllion barrels of oil production per day through

the Trans Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS) within a decade invol ves
a conprehensive five-part strategy. The fifth part focuses on
pronoting Al aska. DNR can do a better job in this area than it
has in the past, he said.

From a policy perspective there's been sonme progress, he said.
He and the Governor have witten letters and spent tine in
Washi ngton D. C. enphasizing the inportance of devel oping
hydrocarbons in Alaska, and the Governor's mllion-barrel goa
conpl ements a goal that President Cbama laid out to reduce U S
oil inports by one-third.

COWM SSI ONER  SULLI VAN said he's also focused on telling the
story about Al aska geology and its potential for oil and gas
production. He nmet with sonme of the |arger conpanies that bid on
the Cook Inlet sale to talk about the Ilease terns and
devel opnment potential and the USGS actually confirmed the
state's aggressive view.

Wth regard to accelerating developnment, he said it's key to
bal ance aggressive |lease terms with shorter lag tinmes. The |ease
terms on the Cosnopolitan Unit were very aggressive and
accel erated and that was possible because it was well known that
significant quantities of oil were under those leases. In this
case DNR struck a decent balance and |earned sonething in the
process, he stated.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI noted that Representative Seaton was
attending via tel econference.

9:55: 08 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- July 19, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN asked what progress the state had made in the
review of the ternms and conditions for shale oil developnment in
Al aska and the |l ease that's comng up this fall.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied DNR has fornmed an internal task
force to look at the unique issues of shale oil devel opnent
related to |l eases, terms, unitization, infrastructure, and water
usage. He and his team have net with their counterparts in North
Dakota on the regulatory issues that that state has had to dea
with in an effort to get ahead of them DNR hopes to be
proactive in establishing regulations in order to achieve the
goal of facilitating responsible devel opnent.

9:58:46 AM

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI opined that DNR is a little different than
other departments in that it gets what it needs because DNR
hel ps provide 90 percent of the state revenue. He asked if the
Legislature could do things to nmake DNR s pernitting process
nore efficient and to encourage nore responsible devel opnent
t hr oughout Al aska.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said he didn't have specifics, but the
goal on permtting would be to have a package of regulatory and
statutory changes to present to governor's office and ideally
present it to the Legislature next session.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if permt applications are increasing or
stable relative to prior years, and if they're increasing how
the Legislature can potentially address the backlog through the
budgeti ng process.

COWM SSI ONER  SULLI VAN explained that the backlog builds up
because DNR is able to handle just 85 percent to 90 percent of
incom ng applications each year. To get rid of the backlog
they'Il have to increase that to 100 percent or 110 percent per
year. Because of the budget increnment, DNR will be able to hire
30 positions in mning, land, and water; 9 positions have been
filled and the rest should be filled by Septenber.

SENATOR MENARD asked if DNR hired any of the enployees that | ost
their jobs when the Coastal Zone Managenent Program shut down.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN answered yes; some were hired, sonme went

into other areas of state service, and sone are still |ooking
for anot her job.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- July 19, 2011



CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if there was any area in the departnent
where spending could be reined in or cut.

COWM SSI ONER  SULLIVAN replied he didn't have specifics, but
that's sonmething that's consistently under review

CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI asked himto coordinate with Mchell e Sydenman
to keep the comm ttee inforned.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what DNR' s policy was with regard to
allowing agencies to openly provide information and if the
Legislature might have to begin to fund research and analysis
i ndependent of relying on the departnent.

COWMWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN replied he initially told his directors
and staff that a big part of their duty was to work closely with
| egislative offices and everyone has stuck by that conmm tnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he was concerned about the May 7 Fish
and Game neno on external reviews and the June 10 statenent from
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS) about the
change in policy that seens to prevent information gathering or
analysis before checking to see that it supports an
adm nistration policy position. He asked to be inforned if DNR
has to change its nmethod of operation with regard to the free
flow of information.

COWMM SSI ONER SULLI VAN added that DNR has been trying to get the
federal governnent to use nore of the departnent's information
particularly in resource devel opnent issues.

10: 13: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said she'd like DNR to increase its use of
vi deoconferencing so that |ocal know edge gets into the picture,
particularly in light of the fact that the Coastal Zone
Managenent Program was shut down. She asked what he's doing to
ensure that that voice isn't |ost altogether.

COWM SSI ONER SULLI VAN said he agrees that |ocal know edge and
input if extrenely inportant. He added that he and his deputy
conmmi ssioners have been to Barrow a nunber of tines in the |ast
six months, nostly to listen. They'll continue to do that, he
sai d.

CHAI R W ELECHOMBKI thanked Conmi ssioner Sullivan. He wel coned

Conmi ssioner Lui ken and asked him to tell the committee about
three to five ways to inprove the efficiency and effectiveness

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- July 19, 2011



of the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities
(DOTPF) and iif any statutory changes would be needed to
i npl enment those i nprovenents.

10: 16: 22 AM

MARK LU KEN, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOTPF), said this was one of the topics the
DOTPF | eadership team undertook in early June. Staff is
currently looking at ways to find efficiencies in the
mai nt enance and operation of the departnment’'s infrastructure.

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked the size of the departnent's fuel
budget .

COW SSI ONER LU KEN estimated it was in the mllions and offered
to follow up to provide the exact nunber

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI nentioned |egislation that passed two years
ago and asked what progress the departnent had nade to supply
the state fleet wth natural gas.

COW SSI ONER LU KEN offered to follow up to provide details on
whet her or not the departnent had acquired any vehicles. He said
t hey have | earned that nuch of the fuel usage in state vehicles
is spent idling. \Were appropriate, they intend to wuse
technology to automatically shut a vehicle off if it has idled
nmore than 10 mnutes. That alone could potentially save 30
percent on the fuel bills so that 1is an efficiency the
department plans to inplenent.

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI noted that |egislation passed several years
ago to increase efficiency in 25 percent of public facilities;
he asked how much that m ght save and if he thought nore savings
m ght be achi eved.

COW SSIONER LU KEN replied energy efficiencies are being
designed into new structures and while 25 percent is the goal,
there will likely be a cost benefit issue in trying to nmake the
ol der facilities nore efficient.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if thernpobstats in public buildings are
turned down at night.

COW SSIONER LU KEN replied the high efficiency systens are
conputerized and woul d be prograned to turn down at night.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- July 19, 2011



CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if automatic lights are used and if
conputers are turned off at night.

COWM SSI ONER LU KEN replied he hadn't |ooked at it recently but
| ast year the departnent provided a report to the Legislature as
to what policies would be inplenented.

SENATOR MENARD asked if part of DOIPF s strategic planning
included |ooking at what other states are doing to be nore
efficient.

COMM SSI ONER LU KEN replied he asked the | eadership teamto find
and benchmark best practices fromacross the U S

10: 24: 21 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN referenced a slide that indicated that 29 mles
of National H ghway System (NHS) roads neet departnent standards
and asked how nany NHS niles do not neet standards.

COW SSI ONER LUI KEN expl ai ned that that was the nunber of mles
that were added to the systemin a single year. He added that
the slide wasn't part of the presentation; it was an exanple of
what DOTPF is doing to measure its progress.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if a road that does neet departnent
standards can be nmmintained nore efficiency than if it doesn't
nmeet departnent standards.

COW SSI ONER LUI KEN sai d yes.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what the cost savings would be in terns of
| oner naintenance if all roads were brought up to departnent
st andar ds.

COM SSIONER LU KEN replied that is a good exanple of other
nmeasures the departnment could take that would ultimately save
noney.

10: 27: 36 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked if there's a way to inprove the quality
of asphalt to nake the roads |ast |onger.

COM SSIONER LU KEN replied DOTPF enployees that work wth
materials are continually looking for the right mx to create a
| asting surface. But the mx that works in one place won't
necessarily work in another part of the state.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- July 19, 2011



CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if they're |looking at other northern
| atitude countries |ike Sweden and Finl and.

COWMM SSI ONER LUI KEN answer ed yes.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the DOTPF enployees that work wth
mat erials had coordinated with Fairbanks city enployees to |ook
at the application of polyners for Al aska roadways.

COWMM SSI ONER LU KEN replied was |likely a coordinated effort with
DOTPF if the Cty of Fairbanks was working with the university
transportation center.

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there's a bottleneck in the process
that causes road projects to be delayed year after year. He
noted that there are several project delays in his district.

COMM SSIONER LU KEN replied there would be a partial answer
farther along in the brief.

10: 30: 35 AM

COWM SSI ONER LU KEN said the slide titled Al aska H ghway Trust
Fund Receipts shows the total federal aid the state has received
for highways since 2004. Looking beyond 2012 indicates that
federal funding will be less in the future, perhaps as much as
one-third less than in past years.

COWMM SSI ONER LUl KEN sai d statehood in 1959, the 1964 earthquake,
and the [Fairbanks] flood of 1967 inpacted the state's ability
to build a transportation plan and infrastructure. Then the
Envi r onnment al Protection Act passed in 1969 and federal
regul ati ons on t he devel opnent of infrastructure grew
exponentially nationw de. As a state, Al aska has been
significantly burdened as it has worked through the federal
process to develop its infrastructure, he stated.

CHAI R W ELECHOABKI asked if DOTPF tracks and prioritizes the
grants that | everage nore federal dollars.

COM SSI ONER LU KEN said basically yes, but ultimtely it's a
federal process in which the noney comes through FHWA, the
Federal - A d hi ghway funds. That being said, DOTPF is |ooking at
its internal process and regulations in an effort to deliver
projects nore quickly. They've found that state general funding
(GF) is the way to leverage for difficult road projects. This
can save upwards of 60 percent on the tinme it takes to deliver a
project and at least a third of the cost of permtting. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- July 19, 2011



di splayed a graphic depicting the cost/tinme elenments for the
federal and state processes.

10: 33: 50 AM

COWM SSI ONER LU KEN said DOTPF is continuing to |look at ways to
increase efficiencies in the Alaska Marine H ghway System and
reduce the state contribution. For exanple, seven vessels use a
fuel managenent system that reduces fuel consunption by as nuch
as 12 percent on long transits and one nore vessel wll be
outfitted with the control. This will result in a meaningful
cost savings. A new marketing and reservation system is in
process and wll increase efficiency by standardizing ticket
sales and optimzing routes based on demand. Finally, taking
nmore tinme to plan and forecast the budget will result in a nore
accurate schedule prior to the upcom ng season.

COM SSIONER LU KEN said that finding opportunities for
ef ficiencies was one of the main thenes when DOTPF put together
its strategic plan. That plan will be posted on the departnent's
website in the next week or so and everyone will be able to see
what they're proposing.

10: 38: 01 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN pointed out that in the Interior the Al aska
State Troopers (AST) and the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
are housed in facilities that are not handicap accessible. He
asked how many other public facilities statewide are simlarly
inefficient in terns of accessibility.

COWMM SSI ONER LUI KEN offered to follow up and get the nunber, but
new facilities, vessels, and all renovations are designed to
neet federal mandates for handi cap accessibility.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked when the public could expect the AST and
DW building to be retrofitted so that it is handicap
accessi bl e.

CHAIR W ELECHOABKI said he too would like that information. He
then asked if DOTPF neasures the performance of entities that
receive public funding to see that the state is getting the nost
bang for the buck.

COWMM SSI ONER LU KEN answer ed yes; regul arly nmeasuri ng

performance is part of the departnment's nmandate and process for
both state and federal funding.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- July 19, 2011



CHAIR W ELECHOWMSKI asked if anyone is following up on the
Febr uary 2010 coor di nat ed transportation t askf orce
recommendation to develop a statewide database to nonitor
funding and to evaluate effectiveness of state funding projects.

COW SSI ONER LUl KEN answered yes; before his tenure DOTPF asked
for and received funding to do that.

10: 42: 50 AM

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI asked if DOTPF has a simlar process for
harbors as the one it has for classifying roads and identifying
mai nt enance needs.

COW SSI ONER LU KEN replied he wasn't aware of one, but he would
find out and provide a nore conplete answer.

SENATOR NMENARD comrented that the people of the MatSu Borough
appreciate the attention that's focused on the highway safety
corridors.

CHAIR W ELECHOWSKI  t hanked Conmi ssioner Luiken. He welconed
Deputy Comm ssi oner Tangenman and asked himto tell the commttee
about three to five ways to inprove the efficiency and
ef fectiveness of the Departnment of Revenue and if any statutory
changes woul d be needed to inplenent those inprovenents.

10: 44: 16 AM

BRUCE TANGEMAN, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue
(DOR), said Jerry Burnett would address the question from the
treasury perspective.

10: 45: 55 AM
JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comm ssi oner, Division of Treasury,
Departnent of Revenue (DOR), informed the committee that the

Per manent Fund Dividend Division has done a nunber of things to
increase efficiency. Online filing and direct deposits have
increased the past several years and |ast year because of
increased automation all the direct deposits and regularly
schedul ed check paynents were nade at the sane tine. This year a
phone queue was put in place so that callers can receive an
automatic call back when a division enployee is avail able rather
than spending time on hold. Because of automation, fewer people
work in the division, programs like "Pick. Cdick. Gve." have
been added, and there's been tine to follow up on nore cases in
terms of fraud investigation. Enployees are also being trained
to maintain and inprove the system and hopefully provide nore
i nformation t her eby reduci ng consti tuent conpl aints to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- July 19, 2011



| egi sl ators. To i mprove ef fecti veness, unsuccessf ul PFD
applicants now get a personal phone call to help solve the
problem This has reduced the nunber of appeals by 70 percent
from two years ago. Sone training is needed each year, but
i nprovenents and automati on are expected to conti nue.

10: 49: 37 AM

MR. BURNETT said about one in five Al askans is affected by child
support. The current system is federally approved and funded
with two-thirds federal and one-third state dollars. The Child
Support Services Division has begun planning for a new

information system which will take several years to go through
the planning and federal approval process. He noted that over
the next several years DOR will probably ask the Legislature to

invest in this new system

He said that while the child support caseload has renained
relatively flat over the last 10 years, the nunber of enployees
has dropped from 339 in 2004 to 228 today. Collections have gone
up year-after-year except FY10, and that's because collections
were way up in 2009 when the PFD was $3,200. As technol ogy
i nproves the division could possibly do even better, he stated.

10: 51: 56 AM

MR. BURNETT reported that over the past six years the Treasury
Division has increased the noney under its managenent from $20
billion to $40 billion. In the last two to three years treasury
has usually had nore noney under managenent than the permanent
fund. He predicted that ongoing training, continuing to certify
financial analysts, and in-house managenent would continue to
increase efficiency and effectiveness in the division. For
exanpl e, five staff manages between $18 billion and $19 billion
in the fixed incone pool at a total cost of about $1 mllion;
whereas a typical fee for a large account, fixed income noney

manager would be $15 million. At the same time the division is
exceedi ng benchmarks nearly every vyear. |In fact, the FY10
m ssions and neasures and results show that nine of ten of the
funds that were neasured exceeded their benchmarks. In the
future there are plans to bring sonme indexed equities in-house.
This will provide the opportunity to save mllions of dollars

wi t hout reducing investnment results.

10: 54: 12 AM

MR. BURNETT explained that at their custodial bank they've been
getting nonthly pricing of their assets and they're working
toward true daily pricing so they <can receive imediate
feedback. The nanagers wll then be able to neasure their

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- July 19, 2011



performance in real time and work to get a better yield for the
State of Al aska.

CHAIR WELECHOWSKI asked if PFD fraud 1is increasing or
decreasing and what steps the departnent was taking to address
t he issue.

MR. BURNETT said he believes that fraud has decreased, but he
woul d  defer to M. Tangeman to discuss that because
investigators from the divisions of tax, child support, and the
per manent fund now work as a cohesive unit that reports to him

MR. TANGEMAN informed the commttee that the goal of the new
Cri m nal | nvestigation Unit was to bring the different
investigators within DOR under one roof to find efficiencies.
Al though the responsibilities and duties of the divisions differ
significantly, there are simlarities and ways to assist each
other. For exanple, an investigator in Anchorage who needs to
check on someone in Juneau who is on his or her caseload can
call the investigator in Juneau to run the check. The divisions
were concerned that this would increase RSAs |[Reinbursable
Service Agreenments] but that hasn't been the case. This was
officially set up in the FY12 budget and hopefully there will be
savi ngs.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked what progress had been made to bring
i ndex equities in-house.

MR. BURNETT replied it's a slow and deliberate process but
enpl oyees have been added, training is underway, and |limted
testing will begin in the next year. An S& 500 index fund can
be replicated in-house, but there are no plans to test energing
markets or a Small-Cap index fund in the near term

10: 59: 12 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how much the departnent has available to
invest in in-house equities and if each of the funds has
different investnent time horizons such that an index fund m ght
be different for individual funds.

MR. BURNETT replied DOR s equity exposure is in the $20 billion
range and each of the many funds it has under managenent has its
own characteristics and its own tinme horizon. He explained that
nost of the funds under DOR managenent are invested in pool ed
i nvestnments so several funds nmay own a portion of an equity pool
while some may be individually invested. For exanple, you m ght
take a portion of what's in the CBR fund or the retirenent funds

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- July 19, 2011



and nmanage the indexed portions in-house. He noted that the
equities in the retirenent funds are currently about 55 percent
passive index funds and 45 percent actively managed funds. At
this tine DOR has over 40 unique asset allocations for different
funds and over 100 different funds and accounts under
managenent .

11: 01: 38 AM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked where the departnent |ooks to define
fiduciary standard.

MR. BURNETT expl ained that the 329 page blue book on investnent
gui delines for the conmm ssioner of revenue has a definition for
acceptabl e i nvestnents and the standards.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked how much the state pays in fees to
out si de financial advisors.

MR. BURNETT replied this year the Permanent Fund D vidend
Di vision budgeted $96 nmillion in outside custody and nanagenent
fees and the Treasury Division budgeted about $35 mllion, but
it will probably spend | ess than $30 nmillion.

CHAI R W ELECHOABKI asked if DOR had considered bringing nore
expertise in-house to try and save on fees.

MR. BURNETT replied that's where they're headed in working to
index equities in-house. He added that in years past a large
portion of the fixed incone pool was nanaged externally at a
cost of several mllion dollars and now it's managed in-house
for under $100,000 with the sanme results.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how nuch is in the CBR nmain account and
the CBR subaccount and questioned why the main account had such
a significantly lower rate of return in FY10.

11: 07: 08 AM

MR. BURNETT replied each account has about $5.1 billion. By
statute the CBR subaccount is invested for maximumreturn with a
five-year time horizon, whereas the main account is invested
entirely in fixed income securities for protection against |oss
and for availability in a shorter range. He added that the
policy on how each account is allocated is an ongoi ng di scussion
between the Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget (OVB), treasury
staff, the comm ssioner of DOR, and the Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA).

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- July 19, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN asked who ultimately nakes the decision on
al I ocati on and anount.

MR. BURNETT replied the statutory responsibility resides wth
the conm ssioner of revenue. He rem nded the commttee that in
2000 the Legislature set the subaccount in statute and
appropriated $400 nillion to it. In 2008 the Legislature
appropriated additional noney to the CBR, and relying on intent
| anguage in the budget the commssioner and then deputy
comm ssioner agreed to nove about $4.1 billion into the
subaccount. No additional noney has been appropriated since that
time.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if the main account has bond exposure.

MR. BURNETT replied the CBR main account 1is invested in
treasuries, cash, and corporate bonds.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if they own the individual bonds or are
i nvested in bond funds.

MR. BURNETT replied they own the individual bonds in all their
fixed i ncone investnents.

11: 10: 57 AM
MR. TANGEMAN continued to explain that the Tax Division is
currently working on two large projects that wll lead to

efficiencies and effectiveness for the staff. The first is the
data gap analysis project. This is the outcone of a request by
Senator Wel echowski to review the information that is gathered
between DOR, DNR, and AOGCC. The purpose of the project is to
provide a centralized, reliable, secure, and autonated database
of oil and gas production and tax information to DOR staff for
the purpose of evaluating tax obligations, having efficient
reporting, and full conpliance fromoil and gas producers within
t he state.

MR. TANGEMAN rel ated that as DOR began neeting with the project
contractor, it becane abundantly clear that it would be nore
efficient if producers and taxpayers could use one portal to get
the information to the state. Once the information is in a
dat abase, it will be divided according to who needs what. DNR is
eager to cooperate with DOR on the project and hopefully an
initial report in August wll provide information about what's
needed and how to nove forward.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- July 19, 2011



Conmpl etion of phase one wll lead into the larger 3-5 year
revenue nmanagenent system project. Utimtely, everything that
is gathered in the data gap analysis wll be fed into the
revenue nanagenent system ldeally it will be a comercial off-
t he-shelf system that's 85 percent to 90 percent conplete and
then adjusted to fit the tax systemw thin Al aska.

SENATOR MENARD asked the cost of the data gap anal ysis project
if an in state or out-of-state firmwas awarded the contract.

11:16: 07 AM

MR. TANGEMAN replied it's under $50,000 and the contractor is a
former DNR enpl oyee who lives in Anchorage. DOR has begun the
RFP [request for proposal] process to bring on an independent
third-party project manager who will be the expert that helps
the state put together the RFP to acquire the system The goal
is to have the [second] RFP out by the end of the cal endar year.
A nunber of other states have already gone through this process
and there are a nunber of good systens from which to choose.

SENATOR PASKVAN said his concern centers on what Alaska will do
in the 3-5 years it takes to get the system up and running in
light of the fact that the COctober 2010 fast enterprise study
said that DOR is not able to audit, exam ne, analyze, forecast,
or manage its tax systens.

MR. TANGEMAN replied he understands but doesn't entirely agree
with the report. The change fromthe antiquated gross tax system
to a net tax system was significant because there was mnim

information under the gross tax and a plethora under the net tax
system Being able to nanage that information is the situation
they're trying to address. It's a challenging and sl ow process,

but DOR is doing audits on tax returns. DOR admnisters 22 tax

prograns and ideally the less conplicated will be inplenented
before tackling the oil tax system The data gap analysis wll
provide a nore immediate return. The information will go into a
database from which reports wll be generated about what

information is avail able and what infornmation i s needed.

11: 20: 43 AM

SENATOR PASKVAN said he's trying to wunderstand what the
Legi slature should do now to get reliable consistent data to
know what credits are being used for and to understand cause and
effect on a tax basis.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- July 19, 2011



MR. TANGEMAN replied they'd ideally like to begin generating
useful information fromthe data gap analysis this fall so there
will be usable information in advance of next session.

CHAIR W ELECHOWEKI said the critical guestion from his
perspective is if in the next 3-5 years it wll be possible to
conplete the audits under ACES to be assured that the state is
getting the revenue it is owed.

MR. TANGEMAN replied DOR is conpleting audits wthin the
statutory tineline right now and the hope is that this project
will provide nore information and nmake it easier to do this.

SENATOR MEYER reviewed the change to a net tax in 2006 under
PPT, the current system under ACES, and the current discussion
about other tax credits and changing taxes in general and
observed that there really isn't any current information. He
asked if the last audit was conpleted in 2006.

MR. TANGEMAN confirmed that the 2006 audits were conplete and
that DOR was currently working on the 2007 audits.

SENATOR MEYER observed that nore current information would be
nore helpful if the Legislature decided to take up oil tax
credits and production taxes in general.

MR. TANGEMAN said the current lag is nore than he's confortable
with but it's shorter each nonth

SENATOR MEYER said one of the frustrations is not knowng if the
tax credits are being wused to produce nore oil or for
mai Nt enance pur poses.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked what efforts DOR had nade to attract
and retain good staff because the fast enterprise report
hi ghlighted that as a problemin terns of audit turnover.

MR. TANGEMAN replied they had sonme turnover when sonme |ong-tine
auditors retired, but things have been fairly stable in the |ast
six months. Since 2007 DOR has added audit masters and is now
filling two commercial analyst positions, but the nunber of
enpl oyees hasn't changed significantly despite the huge change
in the tax structure.

He noted that Senator Stedman asked if nmore auditors were needed

but he's hesitant to request additional enployees at this tine.
Some contractual help will be needed to keep the current system

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- July 19, 2011



going while in-house staff works to stand up the new very
conpl ex system He assured nenbers that this was a short term
probl em

SENATOR PASKVAN noted the unfilled audit positions within DOR
and asked if the State of Alaska has a salary issue for these
hi gh-1 evel audit positions.

MR. TANGEMAN replied it's a continuing challenge that DOR can't
pay as much as private industry. Interviewing for the conmerci al
anal yst positions has gone on all sumer |long and while private
sector analysts like the idea of a 40 hour week, they can't
swal low the big salary cut. He conceded that even when the
benefits are factored in, it's a big hurtle.

11: 30: 29 AM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked for specifics on the magnitude of the
salary differential.

MR. TANGEMAN conceded that he didn't know what private industry
was payi ng.

SENATOR PASKVAN observed that it's logical to think that the
state woul d have sonme of the nbst conpetent and highly qualified
enpl oyees working in this area because it's the main artery of
revenue. |If DOR is unable to attract highly qualified auditors,
that issue needs to be addressed in order for the new systemto
be used effectively once it's in place. He asked M. Tangeman
for his help.

MR. TANGEMAN replied he'd be happy to do sone research on that.
He added that DOR is fortunate to have the people that |Ieft
private industry to fill the audit master positions.

CHAI R W ELECHOABKI echoed Senator Paskvan's coment about the
i nportance  of attracting and retaining highly qualified
financial auditors. This is a critical departnent and this area
brings in 90 percent of the state revenue. He said he'd be open
to changing the statutes if that's what it takes because
billions of dollars are at risk.

11: 33: 58 AM

SENATOR MENARD concurred with both Senator Paskvan and Senator
W el echowski and opined that the pay range should be the sane as
for a commssioner. "It's tinme to stop talking and pay attention
to what we're doing with the enployees that need to be in
pl ace,” she stated.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- July 19, 2011



11: 36: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he hopes that M. Tangeman heard his
comment about the effect of state biologists no |onger serving
on federal panels because current state policy prohibits them
from anal yzing things in a best-science regine, and the June 10
directive from the Division of Public Health that stated that
the executive |eadership team shall review scientific data
presentations at the concept level for political and policy
inplications. He asked if DOR has a simlar obligation or
policy, because that would force the Legislature to get
i ndependent anal yses of these issues.

MR. TANGEMAN replied wth r espect to tax i nformation
confidentiality a nunber-one issue so it's a matter of what DOR
can provide and still keep that as a priority.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified he was tal king about |egislative
requests for information, not confidentiality. For exanple, he
said he requested information on HB 110 when it was in the House
resources commttee and he didn't get it until three days before
the end of the session, and that information could have nmade a
significant difference in the analyzing the data. He said he's
trying to figure out iif legislators' requests to DOR for
information or analysis will have to be given in a way that it
supports a policy position that the admnistration has taken
instead of being information that can be used to generate what
they believe is the best policy for the State of Al aska.

MR. TANGEMAN replied his perspective of that situation was that
DOR answered the question, but the intent of the question may
have been lost in translation. He stated that DOR is very
responsive, particularly during session. He made that a specific
priority to DOR s petrol eum econonm sts and that wll not change
this next session. "If responses take a little bit of tine it's
probably because we're erring on the side of being cautious as
to what exactly we're rel easing," he said.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d per haps t here was sone
m sunder st andi ng but the policies that cane out in May and June
were a concern and he wanted to be assured that the Legislature
woul d be made aware if DOR changes its policy in this regard.

11: 42: 41 AM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked how much noney DOR expects to need for the
next several years to hire contractors.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- July 19, 2011



MR. TANGEMAN replied he didn't know how many full tine
equi val ent contractual workers would be needed at this point,
but the current staff was already working at full load and
couldn't be asked to run two systens simultaneously.

SENATOR PASKVAN highlighted the need to be proactive wth

respect to the DOR budget and to hiring qualified people to
ensure that a backlog doesn't develop in the next 2-3 years.

MR. TANGEMAN st at ed agreenent.

11:45: 14 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI recessed the neeting.

12: 06: 35 PM

CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI reconvened the neeting and announced the next
order of business would be to take public testinony. He noted
that people <could also submt testinony at the website
saveal aska. ak. senate.org or call in on the toll free line at
(855) 463-5009.

12:07: 26 PM

JOHN  SPALDI NG, representing hinself, said he's lives in
Anchorage for 48 years. He expressed hope that the Legislature
was serious saving noney and suggested they forget about buying
property in downtown Anchorage, sell the building that's
currently used by legislators, and use the property that's on
the south side of the airport. That woul d save noney and provide
easy access to the public.

12: 09: 51 PM

BREEHI A M TCHELL, representing herself, said she and her husband
own a plunbing business in Juneau and they've had an
unreasonably difficult tinme getting a nechanical |icense from
the state. This license is required for the business and they've
been renting one but her husband passed the test and is now
gqualified to receive the license. She outlined the difficulties
she had had that highlight dysfunction within the system

12: 14: 02 PM
CHAIR WELECHOMBKI said his staff would contact the state
of fice.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked which office received the application.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- July 19, 2011



M5. MTCHELL replied it was the Departnent of Comrerce
Community and Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED) , Division of
Cor por ati ons, Business and Professional Licensing.

CHAIR WELECHONSKI said his office is |ooking at business
licensing and agreed that there was room for inprovenent.

M5. M TCHELL added that it's confusing to the public that DCCED
i ssues the nechanical licensing regulations, but Departnent of
Labor and Wor kforce Devel opment (DOLWD) enforces them

12: 15: 51 PM

LYNN WLLIS, representing hinself, observed that the Legislature
spends whatever tine it allots itself working on the budget
process. He surnmised that they could be nore efficient by
vetting and conpleting 80 percent of that process during the
Interim

12:16: 35 PM

BARBARA W NLKEY, representing herself, expressed concern about
the waste of nobney and resources associated with nultiple phone
books, the Anchorage Port Authority, and special legislative
sessions. She offered to submt nore ideas.

12:19: 38 PM

JERRY LAVINE, representing hinself, stated his belief that the
Legislature is one of the inefficiencies of state governnent.
More and nore of state governnent should be privatized to get
public pensions off the public payroll, he said. An exanple of
efficiency is ongoing in the Anchorage area where a private
conpany is working under contract to do maintenance work on the
public water and sewer lines. This doesn't represent a |oss of
jobs; it's that governnent jobs are being transferred to the
private sector. This sane kind of efficiency is denonstrated in
the spring when nore private sweepers are on the road than those
that are owned and operated by the governnent. Increased
privatization will save the governnent a lot of noney in the
long run with regard to pensions and retirenment plans. He added
that he'd send nore ideas to his senator's office.

CHAIR WELECHOMSKI said he'd add the witten comments to the
record.

12:22: 44 PM

PAUL D. KENDALL, representing hinself, said he listed 33 points
in the outline he prepared for his testinony, but sonme was
probably not pertinent. He opined that nore neetings of this

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- July 19, 2011



type were needed to provide tine to go into detail and settle
probl enms or gripe about governnment in a constructive nmanner.

MR. KENDALL expl ained that his philosophy is that everything is
a mani festation of energy attenpting to find a state of being
and that wthout that as a priority this type of discussion
isn't possible. Fundanental priorities include holding the
famly together, increasing accountability, inproving access,
open neetings and the free fl ow of data.

12: 28: 38 PM

MR. KENDALL directed attention to the points on his outline and
said that ghost funding or nonspecific allocations, child
support enf or cenent, and illegal al i ens are additional
i nconsi stenci es and di sconnects that are a concern.

Al aska has a chance to lead the world, he stated. It nay be
necessary to divide the society between the carbon-based people
and the new technol ogists. Be proud of both and understand that
each has a very inportant role. In conclusion, he said he'd |ike
to ask for a job to lead a new energy technol ogy scouting team
for the residential sector.

12: 33: 05 PM

BARBARA LESSMEI ER, representing herself, said she is a service-
di sabl ed veteran who spends a great deal of tine advocating for
veterans. Recently she visited the three job centers in
Anchorage, which are managed by the Departnent of Labor and
VWor kf orce Devel opnment (DOLWD). She said she ultimtely decided
to no longer visit the Ganble facility because a state enpl oyee
named Tom deneaned and was critical of people who were there for
hel p, herself included. That facility eventually closed and the
seni or enployees, including Tom were reassigned to the other
two job centers in Anchorage. Now these two facilities are
unconfortabl e because there are too nany enployees and there's
not enough wor k.

M5. LESSMEI ER asked that sonmeone |look into the situation because
there were probably other instances in state facilities of too
many people doing too little work.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI confirmed the |ocations of the Anchorage job
centers and thanked her for her testinony.

12: 36: 13 PM
CHAlI R W ELECHOWBKI announced an at - ease.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- July 19, 2011



12:44: 31 PM
CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI reconvened the neeting.

LEWS DAVIS, representing hinself, said he's a former state
enpl oyee who has seen lots of waste and believes that many
positions are overpaid. Wen he was working he supervised
several people and learned that on a nationw de basis Al aska
state enployees were overpaid and underworked. He further
commented on boom boxes that were loud enough to rattle the
wi ndows in his hone and trash around buildings that the owners
don't pick up. It doesn't take nuch nobney or tinme to take a
picture of the trash, send the picture to the owner, and follow
t hrough and nmake them pick it up, he said.

12:48: 01 PM

JOHN  FARLEI GH, representing hinself, said he's a nmulti-
generational Anchorage resident and he believes that a |ong-term
perspective can be inportant. He said that when he listens to
the news about the budget he repeatedly hears that Medicaid
costs will be a growng burden to states in the future. During
the Ilengthy national debate on healthcare reform he was
astounded that the U S. Chanber of Commerce fought the reform
because big business would probably benefit the nobst from a
uni versal healthcare plan. National healthcare would relieve
busi nesses of the burden of having to provide healthcare.

MR. FARLEIGH cited a 2004 university study of the healthcare
delivery system in the US. that concluded that the nation
spends enough to cover everybody, but the inefficiencies are
ridi cul ous because of the nmultitude of governnent-funded health
pl ans. For exanple, sone people qualify for both Medicare and
Medicaid (Medi-Medis), but the inherent regulatory conflicts
between the two systens cost the country hundreds of mllions of
dol lars a year.

MR. FARLEIGH pointed out that states are not obligated to be
part of the exchange program if they can conme up with a plan
that, for no extra noney, provides the required services. He
noted that the State of Vernont was trying to do that and he
surmsed that it was trying to get the dollars the federal
government would have ordinarily spent on Medicare, Mdicaid,
and ot her healthcare prograns and roll that noney in to one plan
that would cover all Vernont residents. He suggested that Al aska
at least look at that plan. The math is sinple, he said; one
program for all residents is the cheapest per capita to pay the
prem uns for the insurance.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- July 19, 2011



MR. FARLEIGH pointed out that the private market does sone

things exceptionally well, but health insurance shouldn't be
included in that roster. Corporations have a legal obligation to
make a profit for their shareholders so there is an

irreconcilable conflict of interest. Every tine a person applies
for a benefit, the insurance conpany's notivation is to deny the
claim He said he's heard that Medicare overhead ranges between
one percent and three percent, whereas overhead for the
i nsurance industry ranges between 20 percent and 30 percent. The
reason for this inefficiency is that the health insurance
i ndustry spends a trenendous anount of noney to figure out ways
to turn clains down.

He summarized that legislators should try to find a way to get
the federal governnent to pay the state all the noney it
provides for the various healthcare prograns in the state. It
seens that the state could provide healthcare services to
everyone and save noney in the process, he concl uded.

12: 56: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA t hanked Senator W el echowski for holding
this hearing because listening to the public perspective about
the cost/benefit of the things that government does is nost
important. She said she'd like to help work on ways to develop a
| egislative/citizen discussion group.

1: 00: 50 PM

THERESA OBERMEYER, representing herself, said she's known for
years that Norway had a permanent fund and she was delighted
when she |earned that ten Al aska |legislators were going to visit
that country [to learn nore about the Norway fund.] She said
she'd like to hear that the entire body was going.

M5. OBERMEYER related that for years she had difficulty finding
anything that was reported about the Al aska Permanent Fund that
was fair, so she began attending the board neetings to find out
what was going on. It's enbarrassing, she said, to see that the
Norway Permanent Fund that was started in 1991 is worth $570
billion, whereas the Al aska Permanent Fund that was started in
1976 is, for the first time, worth just over $40 billion. She
surm sed that the fund had gone up recently because the board
was paying nore attention now that it knew that Al aska
| egi sl ators were going to Norway.

M5. OBERVEYER pointed out that Norway not only has a very

successful permanent fund, it also provides free healthcare to
all its citizens. She questioned why Alaska didn't have a

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 30- July 19, 2011



nmedi cal school and comended Representative Kawasaki for
introducing a bill to build both a medical school and a |aw
school. She reiterated that it would be enlightening for all
| egislators to go to Norway.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA related that she would like to go to
Norway but the intensive screening at airports wll keep her
fromtraveling.

1: 08: 06 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chair W el echowski adjourned the neeting at 1:08 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -31- July 19, 2011



